
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG
Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard
Direct Line: 01225 394411 Date: 22 March 2016
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk

To: All Members of the Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel

Councillor Sarah Bevan
Councillor Bob Goodman
Councillor Christopher Pearce
Councillor Alan Hale (forJasper Martin Becker)
Councillor Colin Barrett
Councillor Chris Dando
Councillor Andrew Furse

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Dear Member

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel: Wednesday, 30th March, 2016 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Panel, to be held on Wednesday, 30th March, 2016 at 4.30 pm in the Brunswick Room - 
Guildhall, Bath.

The agenda is set out overleaf.

Yours sincerely

Michaela Gay
for Chief Executive

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report.

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/


NOTES:

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Michaela Gay who 
is available by telephoning Bath 01225 394411 or by calling at the Guildhall Bath (during 
normal office hours).

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday) 

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Michaela Gay as above.

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Michaela Gay as 
above.

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:-

Public Access points - Reception: Civic Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies 
- Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms.

4. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and 
recording by anyone attending a meeting.  This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast.  At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all 
or part of the meeting is to be filmed.  If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, 
please make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or 
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to 
the camera operator

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be 
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound 
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

5. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting.

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast


6. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER.

7. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted.

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.



Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel - Wednesday, 30th March, 2016

at 4.30 pm in the Brunswick Room - Guildhall, Bath

A G E N D A

1.  WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

2.  EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out 
under Note 6.

3.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Councillor Alan Hale will substitute for Councillor Becker.

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

5.  TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN 

6.  ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING 

At the time of publication no notifications had been received.

7.  MINUTES (Pages 7 - 10)



8.  CUSTOMER CONNECT 

There will be a presentation at the meeting on this item.

9.  WELFARE REFORM - UNIVERSAL CREDIT AND COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT (Pages 
11 - 24)

Report attached on Welfare Reform – Universal Credit and Council Tax Support.

10.  CABINET MEMBER UPDATE 

The Cabinet Member will update the Panel on any relevant issues. Panel members 
may ask questions on the update provided.

11.  PANEL WORKPLAN (Pages 25 - 28)

This report presents the latest workplan for the Panel. Any suggestions for further 
items or amendments to the current programme will be logged and scheduled in 
consultation with the Panel’s Chair and supporting officers.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Michaela Gay who can be contacted on 
01225 394411.



This page is intentionally left blank



17
Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 8th February, 2016

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL

Monday, 8th February, 2016

Present:- Councillors Sarah Bevan (Chair), Bob Goodman (Vice-Chair), 
Christopher Pearce, Jasper Becker, Colin Barrett, Chris Dando and Andrew Furse

Also in attendance: 

48   WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.

49   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chairman drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure.

50   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

There were none.

51   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

52   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN 

There was none.

53   ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING 

There were none.

54   MINUTES 

The Panel noted an addition regarding Councillor Goodman’s declaration of interest 
and confirmed the minutes of the previous meeting as a true record and they were 
duly signed by the Chairman.

55   BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX 2016/17 AND FINANCIAL OUTLOOK 2016/17 TO 
2019/20 

Tim Richens, Divisional Director for Business Support, introduced the report.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



18
Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 8th February, 2016

Panel members considered the budget report along with comments from the Policy 
Development and Scrutiny Panels made in the November meetings on the 
Directorate Plans and notes on public consultation (Budget Fair) meetings.

The Cabinet Member for Efficiency and Resources, Councillor Charles Gerrish 
introduced the budget.

Panel members asked the following questions and made the following points:

Responding to a question from Councillor Furse (page 26) regarding ‘ring fenced’ 
money for Adult Social Care (ASC), the officer explained that funding from this 
element of any Council Tax increase – sometimes referred to as the ‘social care 
precept’ - must be used on ASC and that there have been very careful calculations 
on this.

Regarding a question from Councillor Goodman (page 29), the officer explained that 
Bath Western Riverside & Enterprise Area needed funding to enable the Council to 
carry out its role in project delivery and land assembly for the next phases. 
In response to a query from Councillor Barrett (page 28), the Strategic Director for 
Place Louise Fradd explained that the current Waste contract is due to end in 2017 
and a re-procurement process will commence soon. She further explained that the 
recent pay settlement is between Keir and their staff.

Councillor Barrett asked about the budget allocation for the B&NES Mayoral 
referendum (page 29) and Mayor’s budget should that be the outcome. The Cabinet 
Member explained that if a Mayor is elected as a result of the referendum outcome, 
the Mayor would need to operate within the current budget in this financial year.

Councillor Pearce asked what provisions are in place to monitor progress on the 
budget. The Strategic Director for Resources, Andrew Pate explained that there are 
a range of checks in place including internal management processes and regular 
monitoring reports to Cabinet. The Cabinet Member explained that he reviews 
performance against budget with his senior officers, he does take into account that a 
budget is over a 12 month period and there will be peaks and troughs. He confirmed 
that there is also a quarterly report to Cabinet on this.

Councillor Robin Moss (in attendance at the Panel meeting) stated that he felt that 
this had been his first opportunity to comment on the budget proposals as the 
information from other Panel’s and budget fairs is now outdated. He stated that 
elements of this budget are relying on economic growth and ‘spending to save’, there 
is recognition in the papers that the devolution deal may be impacted by economic 
growth, or lack of, so the risk element is substantial. The Cabinet Member responded 
that devolution is still a fluid picture and other than the consultancy costs of 
modelling and developing a deal, it is not reflected in the 2016/17 budget, being not 
expected to commence before the following year 2017/18.   
Councillor Dando asked if the authority intends to get a four year firm settlement 
from Government and the Cabinet Member explained that he does not have enough 
information on their requirements at this stage - the Government have not yet 
responded on the implications.

Page 8



19
Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 8th February, 2016

Councillor Furse asked some questions on the Capital Programme (page 35-54). He 
asked how the authority can afford some of the income generating schemes shown 
on page 53, the Cabinet Member explained that borrowings will not be taken if there 
is insufficient return, that is the principle.

Councillor Moss asked what measures are in place to make sure that 106 
agreements are enforced and the Cabinet Member explained that a more robust 
system for enforcing 106 agreements has been developed.

Councillor Barrett asked if there is a minimum set reserve and the officer explained 
that there is a risk assessed balance, which each Director inputs on, which is 
reviewed every year. He explained that the Government does not assess Council 
reserve levels (information is set out in Table 9 on page 57). The Cabinet Member 
explained that there is a clear programme for earmarked reserves and that some 
reserve money is being drawn down to ease the impact of the settlement.

Councillor Goodman asked the Cabinet Member what he thinks ‘affordable housing’ 
is and about housing at Foxhill. The Cabinet Member explained that the definition of 
affordable housing seems to be changing but his view is to use money to facilitate 
houses for those who can least afford it. Regarding Foxhill he stated that it may be 
possible to encourage Curo to increase the proportion of houses for rent in the area.

In response to a query from Councillor Furse, the officer explained that Avon Fire 
Authority met on 5th February (page 62) and set its precept at 1.99%.

Councillor Dando stated that in previous years this would have been viewed as a 
deficit budget and he wished his concern about the deliverability of the budget to be 
recorded. He commented that there is not enough detail and more business cases 
are required. The Strategic Director, Andrew Pate explained that the 151 officer has 
commented on the robustness of the budget proposals in the report and concluded 
that this is a balanced budget. He explained that the technical work had been done, 
he further explained that the majority of information presented in the Appendices was 
previously presented in the Directorate Plans which went to the November 2015 
PDS Panels. In response to a further question from Councillor Dando, the Strategic 
Director explained that Management and Service Reviews will have firm proposals in 
April which will be consulted upon with a view to implementation in October. He 
explained that the cost of not achieving a saving mid-year will be funded out of 
reserves, the full year saving will be achieved but only part of that being in this year.

Councillor Moss stated that information given to PDS Panels in November has been 
superseded and there is still no settlement. He stated that PDS Panels should be 
commenting at this stage. He explained that in his experience, these proposals 
would have been ruled out due to lack of detail. The Strategic Director commented 
that the late government announcement has not been helpful but the vast majority of 
information in the Appendices comes from the Directorate Plans seen by PDS 
Panels in November. He further commented that this budget may seem different to 
past budgets due to its emphasis on income generation  but that there is a similar 
level of detail to previous years.. The Cabinet Member stated that while there have 
been some changes (such as the national insurance contributions figure which has 
been refined since November when it was estimated)  the vast majority of lines in 

Page 9



20
Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 8th February, 2016

Appendix 3 are the same as submitted to PDS Panels in November and to Budget 
Fairs. 

Councillor Furse asked about budget lines around substance misuse, sexual health 
and teenage pregnancies. The Cabinet Member explained that savings regarding 
drug and alcohol misuse were being made in various ways including more internal 
community support rather than people being sent away to detox which sometimes 
only works until the person returns to their community area. This represents a 
refocus on the service delivery.

Councillor Furse questioned (page 91) the savings in the area of transport delivery. 
The Strategic Director for Place explained that this would just be an amendment to 
staff structure and that efficiencies are also being considered such as improvements 
in safe routes to schools so that children can walk to school. It is about encouraging 
more efficient use of public transport.

Councillor Dando asked how the figures in the Adult Social Care budget have been 
agreed and the Cabinet Member explained that he had met with officers from Adult 
Care and had challenged them on how they reached their figures which had also 
been to the November PDS meeting.

Panel members noted the comments from other PDS Panel (page 127-139) and the 
notes from Budget Fairs (pages141 – 156)

It was RESOLVED that the minutes of this meeting be passed on to the Cabinet for 
their consideration of the budget.

56   CABINET MEMBER UPDATE 

The Cabinet Member informed the Panel that his recent work had been focused on 
the budget as detailed in the previous item. He had nothing further to add.

57   PANEL WORKPLAN 

The Panel noted the future workplan.

Councillor Gerrish stated that he would report back to the Panel on budget matters in 
the event of a four year plan.

The meeting ended at 7.15 pm

Chair(person)

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 10



Welfare Reform Update for Scrutiny Panel

Introduction

Key Elements of Welfare Support:-

 Council Tax Support Scheme
 Local Welfare Support Scheme
 Discretionary Housing Payment
 Housing Benefits
 Universal Credits
 Other DWP Benefits
 Advice & Information Commission 2016/17

Introduction

This report seeks to update Resources PDS panel on the issues relating to 
Welfare Reforms.

It lists some of the key Benefits and changes that have occurred this year and 
highlights a number of changes that are due to be introduced in 2016 / 17.

A detailed analysis of the planned changes has been commissioned in order 
to understand the full impacts and in order to determine our best approach to 
handling these challenges in the future and this research will be analysed 
over the next month to help inform future decisions.

Page 11

Agenda Item 9



Key Elements of Welfare Support:-

Council Tax Support Scheme

Council Tax Benefit was replaced with the Local Council Tax Support 
scheme in April 2013. The scheme we adopted is a means tested 
scheme with certain types of income compared to a needs allowance, 
which is itself calculated by reference to household circumstances.

The Government specified that certain groups such as pensioners will 
be protected and should see no changes to their entitlement. The 
Working Age part of the scheme is discretionary. However, each 
Council can consider whether to protect other groups and how to fund 
any extra protections.

The current discretionary scheme for working age residents was 
implemented relatively quickly and is largely based upon the principles 
of the old Council Tax Benefit scheme. The main thrust of the changes 
implemented were to deliver an affordable scheme taking account of a 
20% reduction in funding for the scheme when responsibility was 
passed from DWP to Communities & Local Government.

The current scheme protects claimants who are considered by the 
Council to be vulnerable and these are defined as those in receipt of:-

 Support Component of Employment and Support Allowance 
(ESA)

 Enhanced Disability Premium
 Enhanced Disability for Dependants
 Disability Premium for Dependents
 Severe Disability Premium

The claimants in receipt of the above premiums/components are 
considered to be vulnerable as they are in need of care and support, 
and therefore could not be expected to work. Furthermore a 
concession in the scheme has been made for those households which 
include a disabled child. The categorisation of vulnerability has always 
been difficult, and this current classification has not always appeared to 
be fair in respect of someone’s ability to pay Council Tax.

For people other than pensioners or the vulnerable, the Council 
currently applies the criteria below for its Local Council Tax Support 
scheme:

 Maximum eligible amount set at 78%
 Local Council Tax Support paid to a maximum Council Tax band 

D
 No Second Adult Rebate
 Child Benefit and Child Maintenance included as an income in 

calculation of entitlement

Page 12



 No Underlying Entitlement
 Those people with Capital/Assets over £10,000 will not be entitled
 No non dependant deductions
 No entitlement to backdating. 

The Council implemented a cost neutral Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme in 2013-14 to reflect the reduced Government funding available. 
The current gross cost of Council Tax Support is £8.528 million as 
measured at end of February 2016 (February 2015: £8.797 million). The 
fall in value of support provided of £269,000 since last year is due to the 
continuing decrease in number of claimants, which has fallen by 457 
(February 2016: 10,491, February 2015: 10,948). Within this total of 457, 
Working Age claims (including the vulnerable) have reduced by 138 and 
Pension Age (PA) claims have reduced by 319. 

The overall value of support provided to all LCTS claimants has 
decreased by £725,000 since implementation of Local Council Tax 
Support in April 2013 (February 2016: £8,528,133, April 2013: 
£9,253,075) due to the overall decline in numbers of claimants of 1,369 
(February 2016: 10,491, April 2013: 11,860). 

The value of support for Working Age (WA) claimants, as measured on 
30th November 2015 - the Relevant Date for determination of the 
scheme’s tax base adjustment, was £2,542,131. At the time, this support 
applied in 3,916 WA claims (April 2013: 4,801). The value of support for 
the vulnerable claimants, as at the same date, was £1,451,373.  

In 2016-17, administration grant for delivery of LCTS alone, as provided 
by Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG) and 
included in Service budget, is £163,233. Customer Services applies this 
grant fully for its delivery of the support. It is anticipated that grant funding 
will be reduced as central government continues to look for cost savings 
nationally, and as our number of claimants decreases. One aim of the 
strategic review is to simplify the scheme in the future both from an 
administrative view point and from the claimants perspective and the 
team are currently modelling a number of options which the Council may 
choose to consult upon.

Council Tax collection rate is being maintained close to historic levels of 
nearly 99% (2014-15: 98.63%), although collection rates for those cases 
in receipt of Council Tax Support is lower at just under 80% within the 
year.

Page 13



1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35
10400

10600

10800

11000

11200

11400

11600

11800

12000

Total
Total CTS Caseload - April 2013 to Feb 2016

Ap
r

Ju
ne Au

g
O

ct
De

c
Fe

b
Ap

r
Ju

ne Au
g

O
ct

De
c

Fe
b

Ap
r

Ju
ne Au

g
O

ct
De

c
Fe

b

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

WA Other

WA Employed

Pensioners

Vulnerable

These graphs highlight the reduction in awards of Council Tax Support since 
its introduction in April 2013 and also the change in claimant types.

Page 14



Local Welfare Support Scheme 

As a result of its success in supporting the most vulnerable members of our 
Community impacted by Welfare Reform, this year the Council has continued 
to fund Local Welfare Support.

The total amount of funding provided is £320,000, this included contribution 
towards administrative costs.

The Scheme was administered within the Customer Services Directorate by 
the Welfare Support Team, but as a result of reviewing this process two 
members of the team have been transferred to work alongside the Connecting 
Families Team. This gives us wider expertise and improved methods to 
ensure that people who are referred down this route are given the most 
appropriate support.

As previously reported we continue to operate a non cash scheme (i.e we do 
not simply hand out cash), we seek to understand the difficulties faced by our 
customers and we have a number of remedies that can be applied.

The awards we do give out are in two sections, discretionary awards to cover 
short term emergency Support and non-emergency support for basic 
household items.

Emergency Support to cover daily crisis - This covers elements of the 
social fund previously administered by DWP and now part of our own “non-
cash” scheme

Majority of claims are made by DWP customers and those who appear to live 
hand to mouth on a daily basis although we are seeing a few Universal Credit 
customers now, particularly where they are struggling to survive without an 
award for the first 5 weeks of their claim and they have left it too late to 
arrange alternative payment arrangements. Most applications result from:

 JCP sanctions
 Debt
 Poor budgeting skills
 Loan repayments
 Irresponsible spending


Conditions for financial help normally include:
 Money Advice 
 Bristol Credit Union
 CAB
 Reach/DHI

Then there are Non-Emergency Support arrangements Basic household items 
are purchased to support the homeless and those moving to affordable 

Page 15



housing. This is deemed essential support to those who have been placed 
within accommodation with no means to vital household possessions.

Where possible we use local suppliers and charities such as, Genesis 
Furniture Project to reduce or share the costs. The welfare Support Team has 
agreed with Genesis Furniture Project a voucher scheme whereby customers 
are awarded an amount to spend on essential items. Quite often the Genesis 
Furniture Project will add additional items free of charge to support the needs 
of the customer.

A breakdown of the awards to date is shown below:-

Back To Work 1,345.86 
Supported Accommodation 34,502.01
Food 30,169.25
White Goods 118,864.10
Debt 37,465.684 
Foodbank Support 15,500.00 
Julian House 1,470.00 

Spend to March 2016 239,316.90 

Page 16



Discretionary Housing Payments

Local Authorities are able to make discretionary awards to householders who 
are struggling to meet their rent liabilities providing they adhere to guidance 
issued by the DWP and adopt a relevant Policy. Our policy follows the DWP 
guidelines and enables the assessor to make a fair and equitable decision on 
a case by case basis.

In 2015/16 the funding for Discretionary Housing Payments amounts to 
£185,742.00 this is the amount we as a Council can spend without having to 
make any contributions through Housing benefit Subsidy.

To-date we have awarded Discretionary Housing Payments totalling 
£145,228.83

29

57

6

12

212
Move to ALT
Accommodation
Rent until move to
ALT Accommodation
Until Employed
Disabled
Other

Reason

£3,054
£6,760

£73,769

£59,576 6 Ben Cap
23 LHA
110 Unrelated to WR
212 SSSC

DHP Spend to-date (March 2016) Ben Cap – Benefit Cap
LHA – Local Housing Allowance 
Restriction
WR – Welfare Reforms
SSSC – Size Criteria (Bedroom Tax)

Page 17



Next financial year the Government have increased our DHP spending limit to 
£232,588.00, this is in light of future Welfare Reforms such as further cuts to 
the Capping Limit and the freeze on LHA rates.

Housing Benefits

There continue to be many changes to the way in which Housing Benefit is 
administered; we have started to see a reduction in the live caseload and a 
reduction in total spend for the first time in many years. However, the 
workload in this area continues at pace.

There are now more people in work so the number of pass-ported cases has 
reduced. However, there is an increase in changes of circumstances with 
more people on low income jobs. We also now receive regular RTI (real Time 
Information) scans from DWP in relation to earnings changes and we have 
also been encouraged to carry out more review work under an initiative called 
FERIS (Fraud & Error Reduction Incentive Scheme).

To a lesser extent caseload has reduced because of Universal Credits going 
live for new Job Seekers, although these numbers are still relatively low.

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
9,800

10,000

10,200

10,400

10,600

10,800

Live HB claims each year end

Page 18



31/03/2012

31/03/2013

31/03/2014

31/03/2015

31/03/2016
49,000,000.00

50,000,000.00

51,000,000.00

52,000,000.00

53,000,000.00

54,000,000.00

55,000,000.00

Housing Benefit Spend Tracker

A number of welfare reforms have already been introduced that impact on the 
amount and number of claims to Housing Benefit and these will pass on into 
Universal Credits:

 The under-occupation charge (also known as the ‘removal of the spare 
room subsidy’ or the ‘bedroom tax’) reduces Housing Benefit for 
households living in the social-rented sector who are deemed to have a 
‘spare’ room.

 The Local Housing Allowance limits the amount of Housing Benefit 
tenants in the private-rented sector can receive.

 The benefit cap limits the total benefit income most working-age 
households can receive.

Further reforms targeted at working-age households were announced in the 
Summer Budget 2015. In Bath and North East Somerset the benefit cap has 
been reduced to £20,000 per year for couples and families with children and 
to £13,400 per year for single people without children. In the Summer Budget, 
the Chancellor also announced the removal of the Family Premium for all new 
claims to Housing Benefit made on or after 1st May 2016. 

Page 19



Universal Credit

Bath Job Centre was one of the first to go live with new claims for Universal 
Credits in February 2014. The claimant base has grown very slowly and has 
increased slightly as other neighbouring job centres whose customers live in 
our area such as Wells & Frome have also gone live.

The main cohort of customers impacted by this change are single JSA 
claimants and as such there has been limited impacts, although working 
closely with the social landlords in the area we have identified a number of 
issues with the current live system.

We have just over 150 of our Council Tax Support customers who have 
Universal Credit as part of their income assessment, we understand that there 
is a steady caseload of Universal Credit customers registered with DWP and 
we are aware that many of those who in the past would have claimed Housing 
Benefit are now falling further in to arrears with their rent. This does increase 
their chances of eviction and potential pressures on our homelessness teams 
although as yet this is not been reflected in the number of cases.

Further Reforms to Universal Credit have been announced in the Autumn 
statement. Work allowances under Universal Credit have been reduced to £0 
for non-disabled households without children and substantially reduced for 
families with children and this does reduce one of the key selling points in 
relation to making work pay.

The main news in relation to administration of Universal Credits is that a 
recent announcement from Government detailing the roll out of Full Service is 
about to start at the end of May 2016 and again Bath is at the top of the list.

We are currently negotiating with our local DWP Partnership manager around 
the delivery partnership agreement for this. The proposals are very similar to 
the existing model of operation whereby we are compensated to perform a 
number of tasks which include:-

 Supporting customers to access digital applications for Universal Credit
 Helping customers who are referred by the DWP for Personal 

Budgeting & Support
 Helping the DWP processing centres with complicated or difficult cases 

where Housing costs are involved
 Providing some managerial support to ensure safe landing of the 

scheme

In addition to this we will still have to manage Council tax Support applications 
from the same customers although DWP say their automated system for 

Page 20



providing notifications will be working so they will not be awarding any 
payments for this.

We are still trying to clarify the immediate impacts of this roll out. It will have 
significant impact to the services we provide through our One Stop Shops and 
although this is only aimed at new claimants we could see our Housing 
Benefit caseload dropping quickly.

New claimants will include any new applications for any of the legacy benefits 
now included in Universal Credits (Housing Benefit; Job Seekers Allowance; 
Tax Credits; Employment Support Allowance) so for instance someone 
moving from ESA to JSA will constitute a new claim for Universal Credits.

From early research we have identified that The implementation of Universal 
Credit (UC) in Bath and North East Somerset has begun for single people 
making a new claim for who  would have claimed income-based Jobseeker’s 
Allowance. Numbers in receipt of UC will remain low in the short term, but our 
analysis estimates that at least 7,536 households in Bath and North East 
Somerset will receive UC when it is fully implemented.

For modelling purposes, if we assume that Universal Credit was fully rolled 
out in 2016 and circumstances remained the same, then:

 3,960 households (51.72%) would have a lower benefit entitlement  
under Universal Credit and need transitional protection;

 1,788 households (23.35%) would have a higher income under 
Universal Credit. 

 1,909 households (24.29%) would see no change in entitlement. 

The transition to Universal Credit is expected to extend over the course of the 
next five years. Based on the same cohort in 2020 and assuming 
circumstances remained the same:

• The percentage of households with lower benefit entitlement and in 
need of transitional protection would remain stable at 51.76%;

• 30.52% of households would see their entitlement increase under 
Universal Credit;

• 17.72% would face no change in income. 

In Customer Services we are reviewing the way we deliver our front line 
services and working with staff to understand the impacts. With the need to 
increasingly support customers to claim for Government benefits using digital 
means there is increasingly a link between the facilities we provide within our 

Page 21



libraries and our one stop shops and this will also be taken in to account as 
part of the Library Service review.

Other DWP Benefits & changes

The situation with regard to Pensioners still seems to be in limbo, with 
Pensioner claims for Council Tax Support still being calculated under the old 
Council Tax Benefit rules and there are still no plans to include Pension 
Credits within Universal Credits as had first been the intention. Uprating of 
Pensions continues to put extra burden on the Council Tax Support scheme 
as detailed earlier in this report.

There has been a lot of recent publicity about the proposed cuts to personal 
independence payments although this now seems to have been abandoned.

Analysis of other reforms announced in 2015 that come into effect from April 
2016 include the loss of Housing Benefit for people under 21; the introduction 
of ‘earn or learn’ for 18-21 year olds; the loss of entitlement to child tax credits 
for three or more children; ‘pay to stay’ policies; the capping of Housing 
Benefit at LHA rates for tenants in the social sector; increases in the minimum 
wage; increases in the personal allowance and additional childcare support 
for 3-4 year olds.

Removal of the WRAG Premium

People in receipt of Employment and Support Allowance currently receive a 
higher amount than those in receipt of Jobseeker’s Allowance. ESA is 
currently provided at two rates: one for those who require support to prepare 
for return to work (the Work Related Activity Group) and another rate for those 
with more severe disability requiring long-term support (the Support Group). 

The Summer Budget announced that new claims in the Work Related Activity 
Group (WRAG) will no longer receive the WRAG premium, worth £29.05 per 
week. There are 848 households in the ESA group in the cohort at risk of 
losing this premium if they were to make a new claim.

The National Living Wage and increased personal living allowance

The Summer Budget announced an increase in the minimum wage for people 
over 25, called the ‘National Living Wage’. It will be set at £7.20 per hour from 
April 2016 (compared to £6.70 today) and will rise to £9.00 per hour by 2020. 
This does not apply to 193 under-25s in work, or to 608 self-employed people, 
but it could affect the income of the latter under Universal Credit.

Our analysis finds that, from April 2016, the new minimum wage will increase 
the earnings of 1,895 low-income families in Bath and North East Somerset. 

Page 22



1,895 of households in receipt of Housing Benefit and council tax support, 
aged 25 or over, in work and not self-employed earn below £9 per hour.

The impact of the National Living Wage combined with the increased personal 
allowance will help 2,396 households in work, by an average £11.61 per 
week.  It is worth pointing out that this will only happen if all employers 
respond to the higher National Living Wage by increasing their workers’ 
wages accordingly rather than reducing hours or hiring younger people who 
are not affected by the reform.

‘Pay to Stay’

Social housing tenants with household incomes of £30,000 and above in Bath 
and North East Somerset will be required to ‘pay to stay’ in social housing by 
paying a market rent for their home. This policy is expected to be introduced 
in 2017/18. Local authorities will be required to pass on this increased income 
to the Exchequer. Housing Associations will be able to use this extra income 
to invest in new housing.

The more favourable outlook for 2020 is the result of other measures 
announced in the Summer Budget 2015, namely the rise in the National Living 
Wage to £9 per hour for people over 25, and the increase in the personal tax 
allowance to £12,500.

Advice & Information Commission

The current support provided through CAB has been under review this year 
as the contract is coming to a close. It has been agreed that a revised 
extension to the work with CAB will continue next year but with a focus on 
financial support; with new monitoring arrangements to be put in place. This 
will be reviewed over the year and will also link in with the arrangements for 
implementing Universal Credit and the provision of Personal Budgeting 
Support with a view to encapsulating all Advice and Information in future 
years through the new “Your Care You’re way” model.

Page 23



Page 24



RESOURCES PDS FORWARD PLAN

This Forward Plan lists all the items coming to the Panel over the next few months.

Inevitably, some of the published information may change; Government guidance recognises that the plan is a best 

assessment, at the time of publication, of anticipated decision making.  The online Forward Plan is updated regularly and 

can be seen on the Council’s website at:

http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1

The Forward Plan demonstrates the Council’s commitment to openness and participation in decision making.  It assists the 

Panel in planning their input to policy formulation and development, and in reviewing the work of the Cabinet.

Should you wish to make representations, please contact the report author or Michaela Gay, Democratic Services (01225 

394411).  A formal agenda will be issued 5 clear working days before the meeting.  

Agenda papers can be inspected on the Council’s website and at the Guildhall (Bath), Hollies (Midsomer Norton), Civic 

Centre (Keynsham) and at Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 11

http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1


1

Ref
Date

Decision 
Maker/s Title Report Author

Contact Strategic Director Lead

30TH MARCH 2016
30 Mar 2016 Resources PDS

Council Connect Ian Savigar
Tel: 01225 477327

Strategic Director - 
Resources

30 Mar 2016 Resources PDS
Welfare Reform - Universal Credit and Council Tax 
Support Ian Savigar

Tel: 01225 477327

Strategic Director - 
Resources

25TH MAY 2016
25 May 2016 Resources PDS

Pensions Board Tony Bartlett
Tel: 01225 477302

Strategic Director - 
Resources

25 May 2016 Resources PDS
Business Rate Retention - Impact of Government 
Changes Tim Richens

Tel: 01225 477468

Strategic Director - 
Resources

25 May 2016 Resources PDS
Digital Strategy Angela Parratt

Tel: 01225 396576

Strategic Director - 
Resources

13TH JULY 2016
13 Jul 2016 Resources PDS

Use of Consultants and Agency Staff - Update on Task 
and Finish Group Richard Howroyd

Tel: 01225 477334

Strategic Director - 
Resources

P
age 26



2

13 Jul 2016 Resources PDS
Procurement Strategy - Think Local Richard Howroyd

Tel: 01225 477334

Strategic Director - 
Resources

13 Jul 2016 Resources PDS

Commercial Estate
Richard Long, 
Derek Quilter

Tel: 01225 477075, 
Tel: 01225 477739

Strategic Director - 
Resources

14TH SEPTEMBER 2016
14 Sep 2016 Resources PDS

Communications
Jonathan Mercer, 
David Trethewey

Tel: 01225 477449, 
Tel: 01225 396353

Strategic Director - 
Resources

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED
Resources PDS

Training and Development
William Harding, 
David Trethewey

Tel: 01225 477203, 
Tel: 01225 396353

Strategic Director - 
Resources

The Forward Plan is administered by DEMOCRATIC SERVICES:  Michaela Gay 01225 394411  Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk

Ref
Date

Decision 
Maker/s Title Report Author

Contact
Strategic Director 

Lead

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES
	9 Welfare Reform - Universal Credit and Council Tax Support
	11 Panel Workplan

